
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Environmental Financial Advisory Board 

 
Public Meeting Minutes 

October 18–19, 2022 
 

Location: 
Hyatt Regency Denver Tech Center 

Denver, Colorado 
and 

Virtual Platform  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by Edward H. Chu, EPA Designated Federal Officer  
Certified as accurate by Kerry E. O'Neill, Chair, Environmental Financial Advisory Board  
 
 
 
NOTE AND DISCLAIMER: The minutes that follow reflect a summary of remarks and conversation during the meeting. 
Such ideas, suggestions, and deliberations do not necessarily reflect consensus advice from the Board. Formal advice 
and recommendations may be found in the final advisory reports or letters prepared and transmitted to the agency 
following the public meetings. Moreover, the Board advises that additional information sources be consulted in 
cases where any concern may exist about statistics or any other information contained within the minutes.  



 

Contents 
Purpose ..................................................................................................................................... 1 

Day 1 ................................................................................................................................... 2 
Welcome, Member Roll Call, and Review of Agenda ............................................................... 2 

Welcome ................................................................................................................................ 2 
Roll Call ................................................................................................................................... 2 

EPA Region 8 Welcome ............................................................................................................. 2 
DFO News .................................................................................................................................. 4 
EPA Office of Environmental Justice and External Civil Rights ................................................. 4 
EPA Senior Management Update ............................................................................................. 6 
GREENHOUSE GAS REDUCTION FUND (GHGRF) PROPOSED CHARGE ...................................... 7 

Program Objectives ................................................................................................................ 9 
Program Structure................................................................................................................ 10 
Execution, Reporting, and Accountability ............................................................................ 10 

Opportunity Zones Workgroup ............................................................................................... 11 
Pollution Prevention Workgroup ............................................................................................ 12 
Public Comment ...................................................................................................................... 12 
Adjourn ................................................................................................................................... 15 

Day 2 ................................................................................................................................. 16 
Welcome and Member Roll Call ............................................................................................. 16 

Roll Call ................................................................................................................................. 16 
GHGRF Charge Vote ................................................................................................................ 16 
Proposed Water Charges for Board Consideration ................................................................. 19 
EFAB Chair's Corner................................................................................................................. 21 
DFO Final Thoughts ................................................................................................................. 23 
Public Comment ...................................................................................................................... 23 
Adjourn ................................................................................................................................... 24 
Appendix 1. Federal Register Announcement ........................................................................ 25 
Appendix 2. Agenda ................................................................................................................ 26 
Appendix 3. EFAB Members, 2022 Roster .............................................................................. 28 
Appendix 4. Office of Environmental Justice and External Civil Rights Briefing ..................... 32 
Appendix 5. Inflation Reduction Act Slides ............................................................................. 35 
Appendix 6. GHGRF slides ....................................................................................................... 39 
Appendix 7. GHGRF Proposed Charge .................................................................................... 40 
Appendix 8. GHGRF Statute Language .................................................................................... 43 



 

Appendix 9. Opportunity Zone Letter ..................................................................................... 46 
Appendix 10. Pollution Prevention Letter and Presentation .................................................. 54 
Appendix 11. Public Comments .............................................................................................. 67 
Appendix 12. Final Approved GHGRF Charge ....................................................................... 113 
Appendix 13. Office of Water Proposed Charges ................................................................. 117 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  |   1 

Purpose 
The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Financial Advisory Board (EFAB or Board) is an advisory 
committee chartered under the Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA) to provide advice and 
recommendations to EPA on creative approaches to funding environmental programs, projects, and 
activities. The purpose of the meeting was for EFAB to provide workgroup updates and work products, 
consider possible future advisory topics, and receive updates on EPA activities.  
 
The meeting was announced in the Federal Register (see appendix 1). 
 
Please see appendix 2 for the agenda. 
 

  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  |   2 

Day 1 
Welcome, Member Roll Call, and Review of Agenda 

Welcome 
Designated Federal Officer (DFO) Edward (Ed) H. Chu welcomed attendees and gave an overview of the 
two-day meeting. He reminded participants that the meeting would be recorded and livestreamed and 
that a meeting summary would be available within 90 days. He thanked those who had made the hybrid 
event possible. He noted there were public commenters present and explained how others could submit 
comment for the record. 
 
Ed Chu turned the meeting over to the EFAB Chair, Kerry O’Neill, for the roll call (see appendix 3 for 
EFAB member affiliations).  
 
Roll Call
Ashley Allen Jones, present 
Courtney L. Black, present 
Steven J. Bonafonte, present 
Angela Montoya Bricmont, present 
Matthew T. Brown, present 
Stacy Brown, present 
Theodore (Ted) Chapman, present 
Albert Cho, present 
Janet Clements, present 
Lori Collins, present 
Zachary Davidson, present 
Jeffrey R. Diehl, present 
Sonja B. Favors, present 
Phyllis R. Garcia, present 
Eric Hangen, present 
Edward Henifin, not present 
Barry Hersh, not present 
Craig Holland, present 

Craig A. Hrinkevich, present 
Margot Kane, present 
Thomas Karol, present 
George W. Kelly, present 
Gwendolyn Keyes Fleming, not present 
Cynthia Koehler, present 
Colleen Kokas, not present 
Joanne V. Landau, present 
Lawrence Lujan, present 
MaryAnna H. Peavey, present 
Dennis A. Randolph, present 
Eric Rothstein, present 
Sanjiv Sinha, present 
William Stannard, present 
Marilyn Waite, present 
David L. Wegner, present 
Gwen Yamamoto Lau, present 
David Zimmer, present 

 
 
EPA Region 8 Welcome  
KC Becker, EPA Region 8 Regional Administrator 
 
KC Becker welcomed attendees to EPA Region 8, which she described as the second largest of EPA's 
regions by land area but the smallest in terms of population; it is very rural. She said there are 28 tribal 
nations in the region, as well as significant poverty. 
 
KC Becker said that climate change is having a major impact on the area, including extended wildfire 
seasons and extreme weather events, such as a decline in snowpack and a scarcity of water. 
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

3 

She said that the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) offers an unprecedented level of resources, and 
although the opportunities are exciting, there are challenges. Providing real time technical assistance 
(TA) to communities is a priority so that they can implement projects. Another challenge is having the 
human resources and operations and maintenance (O&M) to apply for and then use the funding. With 
the region's few technical experts, engineers, and contractors spread across a vast area, there are not 
enough people who can apply for and implement opportunities offered by the BIL and other sources. In 
addition, some communities find https://www.whitehouse.gov  intimidating. Some groups say that it's 
not worth the time and effort to apply for grants because even a simple mistake means they won't get 
awarded. She said communities in her region want a simple process; they want federal agencies to 
coordinate with one another. She said resources will make real differences in communities, and that the 
BIL and Inflation Reduction Act (IRA) won't be the end, they will be the beginning. 
 
Ed Chu invited questions from EFAB. 
 
Lori Collins asked if there is a role for non-profit organizations (NPOs) to help bridge the gap between 
government resources and community needs. KC Becker said there may be; NPOs may be grantees. It 
depends on how statute is written and whether groups exist in particular areas.  
 
George Kelly said asked about defining environmental justice (EJ) for rural areas, and he also asked 
whether O&M can be built into performance-based contracting. KC Becker said that when they talk 
about environmental justice in Region 8, it's about addressing the most underserved communities, 
which looks differently than in urban areas. She pointed to EPA's EJ Screening Tool's initial inability to 
capture issues that affect the area. The tool might look at lead-based pipes, for example, which may be 
an issue in some communities in Denver. However, some rural areas have no upgraded water system at 
all. She noted that adjustments have been made to the tools. Regarding the O&M issue, KC Becker said 
she does not have an answer and would like to hear more from the group about how to address the 
challenge.  
 
Kerry O'Neill said the conversations over the next couple of days will be well informed by KC Becker's 
on-the-ground perspective. KC Becker thanked the group for their focus and for giving their time to 
think through the structural changes that they need to make to make resources valuable to whole 
community.  
 
MaryAnna Peavey asked how Region 8 going to ensure that TA gets to communities that need it and is 
high-quality so that communities receive accurate information—particularly how it will work with State 
Revolving Fund (SRF) programs. KC Becker replied that EPA has resources for TA, but EPA does not 
control how states spend their SRF monies. She said that they are hiring experts to provide TA. She said 
she was not sure how quality control will be done, but that a more immediate challenge is letting 
communities know that the resources and TA are available to them. 
 
Ted Chapman observed that co-op models (water and electricity) work in low-density areas and would 
allow for additional funding opportunities, such as U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) funds and 
private banks that serve co-ops. He asked if such an idea might work to increase funding for 
infrastructure. KC Becker said that was an interesting idea she does not know much about.  
 
Ashley Allen Jones said the model for delivering health and medical services to Native communities may 
be something to piggyback on. KC Becker said that Indian Health Services (his) and EPA cooperate well 
to make use of insufficient funding, but resources, staffing, and training are challenges. Keeping people 

https://www.whitehouse.gov/


Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

4 

on the reservation is a challenge. Reservations need staff and resources, as well as O&M. The clinical 
model faces the same challenges. 
 
Dennis Randolph noted the importance of developing capacity in organizations that stays with the 
organization, as opposed to hiring consultants that depart. He also remarked on KC Becker's comment 
that communities fear audits; he said it important to access and learn from reports. KC Becker said they 
are facilitating conversations between local inspector generals (IGs) and states so that everyone 
understands expectations. In rural states, the circuit rider concept is important. Associations can do 
trainings, but in some rural areas there are unique systems tailored to a specific community, so when 
the expert is gone, the person coming after them can't figure the system out. She said training is will 
always be important, and she's excited about what Congress has done to help all these places achieve a 
high quality of life.  
 
 
DFO News 
Ed Chu said that the spring EFAB meeting normally held in March will be moved to February to be 
responsive to the accelerated timeframe of the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GHGRF) charge. That 
charge will require three virtual meetings before the end of the year. These full Board meetings are 
tentatively planned for November 17, December 1, and December 15. These meetings will be about an 
hour or two at most. The date for the in-person February meeting has not yet been set. 
 
Kerry O'Neill said that when the charge is discussed later, it will become clear why the full Board 
meetings need to happen.  
 
 
EPA Office of Environmental Justice and External Civil Rights 
Marianne Engelman-Lado, OEJECR Acting Principal Deputy Assistant Administrator 
Robin Morris Collin, Senior Advisor to the Administrator for Environmental Justice 
 
Note: See appendix 4 for the presentation slides. 
 
Marianne Engelman-Lado said that, consistent with administration's environmental justice priorities, 
EPA has combined three existing offices (the External Civil Rights Compliance Office, the Conflict 
Prevention and Resolution Center, and the Office of Environmental Justice) into a single new national 
program: the Office of Environmental Justice and External Civil Rights (OEJECR). She said the President 
will nominate a candidate for Assistant Administrator of this new office. In the meantime, Marianne 
Engleman-Lado is principal deputy, Robin Morris Collis is Senior Advisor to the Administrator for 
Environmental Justice, and Matthew Tejada and Lilian Dorka serve as deputies. 
 
Marianne Engelman-Lado said that the reorganization reflects the priority of environmental justice and 
the need for a high level of leadership and coordination. She said the $3 billion from IRA is just a part of 
the monies that will be dispersed to low-income and disadvantaged communities. Transparency will also 
be a priority. Staffing will increase, including 110 full time employees (FTEs) across EPA's 10 regions. 
Hiring has already begun.  
 
Marianne Engelman-Lado mentioned the OEJECR launch event was held in Warren County, North, 
Carolina, which is considered to be the birthplace of the environmental justice movement. She said that 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

5 

the goal of the work is to protect the health and environment of all people across the country, and 
ultimately, they will be judged on whether the make a difference on the ground. 
 
In the webinar chat, Roger Jones asked: Will the Grants Management Division provide technical support 
to small/rural communities? Robin Collin said yes, and there is a special program, the Thriving 
Communities Technical Assistance Center, or TCTAC, to reach those communities. EPA teamed with 
Department of Transportation (DOT), USDA, and Department of Energy (DOE) to ensure rural as well as 
urban communities know how to access grant monies. The centers help people figure out what they're 
eligible for and how to apply, and how to combine resources.  
 
Sonja Favors asked in the chat: How will the establishment of this office work with state agencies? 
Robin Collin said that regional offices have staff dedicated to environmental justice, now in sufficient 
numbers to begin to work with people. Environmental justice organizations may want to start by 
contacting their regional office, whose staff are in daily contact with state and local officials. Marianne 
Engelman-Lado added that the Office of Policy, Partnerships, and Program Development will have 
responsibility for partnership with the states. She also said that the Office of External Civil Rights 
Compliance works with states all permitting entities are obligated to comply with civil rights laws. They 
spend a lot of time trying to provide as much information to states as possible. 
 
Dennis Randolph asked how EPA will deal with the issue that, by simply complying with civil rights laws, 
states believe they've achieved environmental justice. In addition, he said he is concerned that 
whenever there's talk of infrastructure development, National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) is raised 
as a delay. But NEPA is at the heart of environmental justice. He asked what support EPA will throw into 
that battle. Marianne Engelman-Lado said NEPA and civil rights were the statutory foundation for 
Executive Order (EO) 12898, and civil rights and environmental justice are being integrated into all EPA 
practices.  
 
Robin Collin said spending has urgent time constraints; $3 billion in block grants must be disbursed in 
three years and a structure needs to be developed to ensure that funding gets into the right hands. She 
said that it is a transformative amount of money for low-income and disadvantaged communities. Her 
question for EFAB is: How do the funds get to these communities? 
 
Eric Hangen asked to hear more about the climate justice block grant, such as the timeline for its rollout, 
how community-based organizations will be defined, and how funds will work with other initiatives. 
Robin Collin said that there are several pockets of money, and they want to put together funding that 
makes sense and are within the limits of the law. She said climate justice block grants can't go to states; 
they go to community-based organizations (CBOs) or CBO–state partnerships. Greenhouse gas funds, 
however, can go to states. Robin Collin said her concern with funding partnerships is that they may not 
be partnerships among equals; large capital organizations may fall back on familiar models. Marianne 
Engelman-Lado added that OEJECR is charged with new responsibilities, and they are figuring it out as 
they go along, ensuring they are consulting with the right people.  
 
Sonja Favors said her concern is that communities may be an after-thought, and that without checks 
and balances, communities will not benefit from the impact of these programs. Second, she noted that 
communities do not have capacity apply for grants or even to know who to contact who can help them 
apply for funding. She said many communities don't even know what questions to ask. She asked what is 
changing in the model, particularly at the state level where these programs are managed. Marianne 
Engelman-Lado agreed and replied that there are several ways of addressing the issues, such as by 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

6 

identifying and addressing specific barriers to resources. Another approach is to address capacity 
building in communities, such as bookkeeping and grants stewardship. She said some grants will be for 
capacity building.  
 
David Wegner said it is imperative to make this new opportunity work. However, he said that 
communities such as unincorporated colonias don't have staff to do anything. He asked how programs 
will be assessed to ensure funds go to the right people, that funds are used appropriately, and that goals 
are being met. Robin Collin agreed and said that the EPA Administrator conducted a "journey of justice," 
to experience what communities "look and smell like." His mission is to reach communities left behind. 
She added that EPA now has more than 30 years of environmental justice experience and has listened to 
the National Environmental Justice Advisory Council (NEJAC) to learn from and to be accountable to 
communities. Third, she said, they have new tools that track where money is going by community. 
Marianne Engelman-Lado emphasized that assessment is built into the Justice40 Initiatives and there 
are other mechanisms, such as performance goals in EPA's strategic plan.  
 
Robin Collin shared a link to EJScreen, EPA's Environmental Justice Screening ad Mapping Tool: 
https://www.epa.gov/ejscreen 
 
 
EPA Senior Management Update 
Zealan Hoover, Senior Advisor to the EPA Administrator 
 
Note: See appendix 5 for the presentation slides. 
 
Zealan Hoover said that the IRA and BIL has grown EPA from a $9.5 billion to a $100 billion agency over 
the next few years, offering a historic opportunity to reduce U.S. emissions by 40% by 2050. When 
layered with other EPA, state, and local action, as well as with innovations from private sector, he said 
he is confident the U.S. can reduce emissions by 50% overall by 2030.  
 
He said that EPA will play a major role in reducing emissions in hard-to-abate sectors by scaling 
programs such as carbon capture and decarbonizing the electric grid.  
 
In addition to $41.5 billion of appropriated funds, there will be an additional $11.7 in new revenue 
resulting from reinstating the Superfund Tax.  
 
Zealan Hoover shared an overview of what is happening across the federal government related to the 
IRA. He said the majority of funding (a projected $270 billion) is going to tax credits for the electricity 
sector, clean manufacturing, electric vehicles, and so on. Regarding discretionary spending, EPA has 
about $56 billion, followed by USDA ($47 billion) and DOE ($35 billion). About 15 other agencies 
together receive about $24 billion. 
 
About 24 EPA programs received funding, but about 98% of funding goes to six programs: Greenhouse 
Gas Reduction Fund ($27 billion); Climate Pollution Reduction Grants ($5 billion); Environmental and 
Climate Justice Bock Grants ($3 billion); grants to reduce air pollution at ports ($3 billion); Methane 
Emissions Reduction Program ($1.5 billion); and Clean Heavy-Duty Vehicles ($1 billion). 
 

https://www.epa.gov/ejscreen


Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

7 

Zealan Hoover shared EPA’s guiding principles for ensuring the monies are well spent and will impact 
communities with the greatest need. He shared ways communities can engage with EPA, such as 
through listening sessions and public meetings, and he encouraged individuals to visit 
https://www.epa.gov/newsroom to sign up for emails and stay current on opportunities to provide 
input. 
 
Kerry O'Neill said that the amount of funding is stunning, and she wondered about prioritizing across 
the agency. Zealan Hoover said that hiring is a priority to address implementation and management 
challenges. 
 
Dave Wegner asked how the program will be synergized across the agency at the policy level. Zealan 
Hoover said there are a lot of deputies and coordination tools in place. For example, EPA has a Climate 
Task Force and Deputies Committee to coordinate IRA programs, and there is a similar structure for BIL 
initiatives. In addition, several interagency workgroups have been formed.  
 
Ed Chu asked about accountability and outcome measurement. Regarding accountability, Zealan Hoover 
said there is upfront program design and steps to proactively prevent fraud, such as requiring 
application through a SAM.gov account, which has strong fraud prevention elements. There are also 
reactive steps to take, such as quality control and fraud checks. The third line of defense is the Inspector 
General, whose office has also received funding to support their activities. On measurement, he said 
they are working with every program to define success and to find ways to measure that and establish 
feedback loops for continual improvement. EPA has a Chief Evidence Officer, and programs are 
developing logic models that tie their indicators to their theory of impact.  
 
 
GREENHOUSE GAS REDUCTION FUND (GHGRF) PROPOSED CHARGE 
Alejandra Nunez and Tim Profeta, EPA Office of Air and Radiation 
 
Note: The presentation slides can be found in appendix 6.The charge questions are in appendix 7. The 
statute language is in appendix 8. 
 
Ed Chu said that, about two weeks prior, the Board created a subgroup to help EPA come up with a draft 
charge that EPA could propose to the Board at large. He said that although Alejandra Nunez and Tim 
Profeta are from EPA Office of Air and Radiation (OAR), for the purposes of this project, they represent 
the Administrator's Office (AO), which requested a charge. He said that the current session is to make 
sure the Board has a clear understanding of what the law says and what the charge questions mean. He 
said tomorrow the group can fine-tune the charge and set a timeline.  
 
Alejandra Nunez began by explaining that the GHGRF is a new program resulting from an amendment of 
the Clean Air Act that provides $27 billion for EPA to award via competitive grants for technical and 
financial assistance. The legislation has three streams. Funding stream 1 provides $7 billion; funding 
stream 2 provides nearly $12 billion, and stream 3 provides $8 billion. While funding stream 1 is for 
states, municipalities, tribal governments, and other eligible recipients, streams 2 and 3 exclude state, 
local, and tribal governments and are for eligible recipients only.  
 

https://www.epa.gov/newsroom


Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

8 

Funding stream 1 is awarded so that recipients can provide subgrants, loans, and other kinds of financial 
and technical assistance. Streams 2 and 3 are for reducing greenhouse gas (GHG) and other forms of air 
pollution. Investments in streams 2 and 3 can be direct or indirect. 
 
Alejandra Nunez pointed out that EPA must begin making grants by February 12, 2023, and funds will 
remain available to EPA only until September 30, 2024.  
 
Tim Profeta added that there are the following five key ambitions from statute that will have to be 
balanced:  

1. Projects should reduce or avoid GHG emissions or other air pollution in partnership with the 
private sector. 

2. Projects should assist communities with reducing or avoiding GHG emissions or other forms of 
air pollution. 

3. Recipients of direct grants should prioritize investment in projects that would otherwise lack 
access to financing. 

4. Grantees should retain, manage, recycle, and monetize repayments and other revenue to 
ensure continued operability. 

5. Indirect investments should provide funding and technical assistance to establish entities that 
provide financial assistance to qualified projects at the community level. 

 
Ted Chapman asked whether there are local matches for stream 1 funding. He also wanted to know 
whether there are not-to-exceed figures as a part of full project costs; in other words, does any language 
say that grants cannot be more than, say, 49% of the total project, or could they be 100% of the 
investment? 
 
Alejandra Nunez said there is no such language in the statute; they had described the entire text. 
 
Dave Wegner asked whether the five ambitions are nested together or are they individual? Tim Profeta 
said he thinks of it as one strategy, but elements must be balanced. Dave Wegner asked if the vehicle in 
mind for leveraging private capital was public–private partnerships or another mechanism. Alejandra 
Nunez said that some concepts are very broad, and they would welcome recommendations from EFAB 
on the matter. She said it would be ideal to provide Administer Regan with several options and the pros 
and cons for each option.  
 
Tim Profeta clarified that single strategy doesn't mean single program. 
 
Craig Holland asked whether technical assistance is defined. If a community group wants to look at a 
particular issue, what would they be able to do? Tim Profeta said the statute does not define TA, but 
because this is a new section of the Clean Air Act, anything pertinent in the Act would apply. 
 
George Kelly asked whether money spent with indirect investments have to follow the rules for direct 
investment. He also asked for clarity on "other pollutants". Tim Profeta said the specific language in the 
statute is not carried down to the level of indirect recipient.  
 
Alejandra Nunez turned the discussion to the proposed charge and said that Administrator Regan would 
like a robust set of options by mid-December, if feasible. She acknowledged that it's a very tight 
timeframe. 
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

9 

Ed Chu shared that the draft charge included input from Margot Kane, Craig Hrinkevich, Dennis 
Randolph, Marilyn Waite, Jeff Diehl, George Kelly, Gwen Yamamoto Lau, Ashley Allen Jones, and Eric 
Hangen. 
 

Program Objectives 
Alejandra Nunez said that the objectives are tied to the text of the statute. The first objective is 
environmental justice and the definition of "low-income and disadvantaged communities". She went 
over the three potential charge questions for this objective.  
 
Tim Profeta walked through potential questions under the second objective, Program Efficiency. 
 
Eric Rothstein asked whether there are templates to assess proposals or applications so that everyone is 
clear about the information they need to provide and so that those assessing applications can compare 
applicants appropriately. Alejandra Nunez said that doesn't exist yet, but EFAB could recommend ways 
to do this. Eric Rothstein assured that the analytics are not difficult and simple tools could go a long way 
toward offering clarity about what information needs to be submitted to support projects.  
 
MaryAnna Peavey asked if there are existing programs in OAR that the program can leverage. She also 
wanted to know if any funding will go to research and innovation. Alejandra Nunez said this program is 
the first of its kind, and they are looking across funding pots and other initiatives to see what is there. 
Part of the language is about filling gaps, and they would welcome input from EFAB on federal or state 
examples. Ashley Allen Jones said that in addition to federal and state examples, EFAB could look at 
government grants, foundation grants, community development financial institutions (CDFIs), green 
banks, innovation funds, private equity funds, blended funds, and public–private partnerships, to name 
a few. Feedback could include the program, a description of how it's done, and pros and cons. Tim 
Profeta said that other information could include how programs could be leveraged or partnered with. 
 
Eric Hangen asked if there any "first among equals" as EFAB takes goals into account. Alejandra Nunez 
said the Administrator will make a decision, and pros and cons will help because it's not possible to max 
out everything.  
 
Craig Holland observed that "leverage" often refers to matching funds at the project level; however, for 
funds to be truly impactful, we should be creating new institutions with long-term operating objectives. 
He encouraged the Board to take a broad definition. He asked whether EPA could compensate people in 
disadvantaged communities for taking part in focus groups or listening sessions. 
 
Alejandra Nunez said EPA has $30 million to administer the program, available until 2031. Tim Profeta 
said we don't need to think of these programs as stovepipes; there may be synergies. EPA is not going to 
be giving direct grants, but grantees can support TA as a part of the grant. 
 
Ed Chu asked what happens after monies are disbursed. There can be a big difference in money 
allocated for administering grants.  
 
Dave Wegner commented that we don't have the metrics on disenfranchised communities figured out. 
He asked what the ultimate goal is—to build community capacity to address the issue, or something 
else? It would help the Board know EPA's ultimate goal so they can approach the charge with that in 
mind. Alejandra Nunez suggested the Board could help them prioritize. 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

10 

 
Tim Profeta said that EPA is coming to the Board very early in the process and they are embracing the 
Board's diverse expertise to help frame and narrow the question rather than having it narrowed already. 
 
George Kelly asked if the Board should look at the charge questions relative to the statutory constraints. 
He also wanted to know how they should think about potentially duplicative funding. Tim Profeta 
replied yes, it needs to be within the statute. To George Kelly's second question, Tim Profeta said the 
Board should consider this program in the context of other programs. If the Board thinks things are well 
financed already, then that makes a difference. 
 

Program Structure 
There are three parts to this bucket of the draft charge. Alejandra Nunez walked Board members 
through the first, eligible recipients. Questions here concern who would be eligible entities and what 
deployment thresholds the Board recommends, as well as what entities would best enable funds to 
reach disadvantaged communities. 
 
Tim Profeta discussed part 2 of the bucket, eligible projects, and the three categories of questions. 
These concern the Board's advice on priority markets; factors about each of the major markets, and 
advisable contracting vehicles.  
 
Finally, Alejandra Nunez introduced questions concerning the structure of funding, such as program 
design requirements. She said EPA wants to create a robust, yet realistic program. 
 
Regarding performance-based contracting, Eric Hangen commented that low-income communities need 
pre-development grants. Tim Profeta iterated that EPA is looking for pros and cons, so the observation 
fits.  
 
Ed Chu explained that the standard operating procedure (SOP) is to form an exploratory group to work 
with EPA to develop a draft proposal, and many of the questions in the draft charge were proposed by 
EFAB members in the exploratory group. He urged the group to consider whether EPA should be asking 
the group the questions and also whether EFAB can answer them. Are these the right types of questions 
we ought to be asking, what expertise do you need, and can you take this on? 
 
Margot Kane asked why loans and debt were included as permissible use of funds. Alejandra Nunez said 
it is in the statute. Margot Kane asked why loans were called out rather than equity investments? 
Alejandra Nunez did not know. 
 
George Kelly said that he had raised the issue of performance-based contracting, and the group could 
define the term. If you don't have it, however, then what are the efficiencies of deploying the money? 
He said he was unclear about how it would work. For example, would EPA put out a template contract? 
Alejandra Nunez said EPA does not have the specific ideas yet and iterated that they want to hear from 
EFAB. 
 

Execution, Reporting, and Accountability 
Tim Profeta introduced the third and final section on implementation and oversight. A key question 
concerns how to quickly start up and keep the program moving.  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

11 

 
Alejandra Nunez walked EFAB through the other two issues: requirements and governance 
mechanisms. 
 
Tim Profeta added there is a balance to strike between the need for oversight of taxpayer money with 
desire not to make the process onerous to grantees.  
 
Ed Chu said that under BIL funding, there will be new Environmental Finance Centers (EFCs) set up. Are 
there other programs under EPA that could complement this? 
 
Ellen Tarquinio with the Water Finance Center said they will make a big announcement in a couple of 
weeks. Currently there are 10 Environmental Finance Centers around the country, and there is a lot of 
focus on environmental justice communities. Regionally-focused EFCs will look at how they can use BIL 
money in disadvantaged communities. In addition, there will be national EFCs focused on filling gaps.  
 
Alejandra Nunez referred back to the issue of loans and iterated that this is an EPA grant program, and 
grants can be used for subgrants, loans, etc., but it won't be an EPA loan program. She also reminded 
EFAB of EPA's Justice40 Initiative commitments.   
 
Gwen Yamamoto Lau asked if EFAB can assume that compliance and reporting will continue through 
2031. Alejandra Nunez replied yes. 
 
Kerry O'Neill asked the Board to consider forming three subgroups organized along the three major 
buckets discussed today. The co-chairs would meet about twice a week through mid-December and 
check in with the full Board at the scheduled times. She also asked the Board to consider how to 
organize work, and she said she will ask for agreement and for volunteers tomorrow. 
 
Ed Chu said the Administration is asking a very important question early in the game. He said the 
balancing requirements means there is no black and white, and the agency wants options. He said there 
is a lot of work to do in the next few weeks and this is an unprecedented request for recommendations; 
EFAB has an opportunity to make important recommendations that will shape the program. 
 
Tim Profeta thanked the group and said the funding presents a tremendous opportunity not just for EPA 
and EFAB, but for the country to make transformational change on issues we care about. 
 
 
 
Opportunity Zones Workgroup  
Margot Kane and Bill Stannard, Opportunity Zones Workgroup Co-Chairs 
 
Note: The OZ letter is in appendix 9. 
 
After brief opening remarks and discussion, David Zimmer moved to approve the letter with minor 
editorial changes, as needed. Lori Collins seconded. A vote was taken by a show of hands; the motion 
passed.  
 
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

12 

Pollution Prevention Workgroup 
Ashley Allen Jones, Pollution Prevention Workgroup Chair 
 
Note: The Pollution Prevention (P2) letter is appendix 10. 
 
Workgroup members and the EPA client, Alison Kinn Bennett, made brief remarks. Lori Collins asked the 
workgroup to elaborate on the process for defining a priority business segment alluded to in the first 
recommendation. Ashley Allen Jones said that the P2 program has seven priority industries sectors so 
there are opportunities geographically and by sector to pull together resources and execute on 
programs.  
 
Eric Hangen moved to approve the letter with minor editorial changes, as needed. Craig Holland 
seconded.  
 
With a show of hands, the motion passed. 
 
 
Public Comment 
Note: Written public comments are in appendix 11. 
 
Dave Harris, Colorado Clean Energy Fund 
Thank you. Good afternoon, everyone. And thank you for the opportunity to speak today. My name is 
Dave Harris. I'm the Chief Operating Officer for the Colorado Clean Energy Fund. We are a nonprofit, 
climate-first organization that is set out to help the state of Colorado achieve its climate goals. We're 
fundamentally designed to fill the funding gaps that may be preventing clean energy projects from 
happening in the state. And we do this through the green bank model. I'm representing Colorado Clean 
Energy Fund today, but I'm also here on behalf of the American Green Bank Consortium. As some of you 
know, this is a collective of over 20 green banks, capital providers, developers, and other clean energy 
supporters who are working together to expand and accelerate the innovative, clean energy investment 
happening across the country. I'm here to speak directly to $27 billion dollars appropriated to the 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund. This initiative signifies a historic moment in our country in the fight to 
combat climate change. The organizations within the American Green Bank Consortium, including our 
own Colorado Clean Energy Fund, are uniquely positioned to readily deploy the $27 billion. It's our hope 
that this Board will provide its recommendation to the EPA to capitalize a National Green Bank. This is 
an entity that will operate as a single nonprofit financial institution and will allow for many organizations 
to benefit from $27 billion and in turn, allow organizations like ours to mobilize and leverage a much 
larger pool of private capital. As Kevin to my left will share here shortly, and as he articulated in his 
written statement submitted to this Board on October 11, "capitalizing is single entity that is a National 
Green Bank is essential to meeting the stated purpose of the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund and is key 
to ensuring the rapid deployment of funds to communities across the country, in particular low-income 
and disadvantaged communities." While the time today won't allow for examples across the entire 
country, I can at least speak to a couple of shovel-ready programs here in Colorado, where funds could 
be applied rapidly to benefit disadvantaged communities. We've a program involving a significant 
number of cooperative electric utilities that will serve homeowners and renters in disadvantaged 
communities and provide them access to solar and other energy efficiency measures. We could readily 
deploy between $75 and $100 million through this program, and affordable housing, we have a number 
of projects queued up across the rural parts of our state, and disadvantaged, pollution-vulnerable 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

13 

communities and metro regions to provide for access to energy efficient equipment, and renewable 
energy. We can readily deploy over $50 million to those projects in the near term. We have equipment 
replacement programs, community solar, transportation, electrification, many other programs that are 
queued up, that could also apply funds quickly. These are just a small handful of examples. But there's 
no shortage of demand. To meet this national demand, we would again like to recommend the 
capitalization of a single National Green Bank to streamline the process of accessing and deploying the 
funds outlined in Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund. 
 
Kevin S. Minoli, Alston & Bird LLP 
Good afternoon. And thank you, thank you for letting me sit in today; I've been the guy in the back of 
the room there all afternoon and early in the morning. You know, this morning, Robin Morris Collin 
talked about this Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund as a transformational amount of money. And it really 
is; from a climate change perspective, it is going to do more to fight climate change than any other 
investment we've made. And from a community perspective, it has the potential—if we do it right—to 
bring communities forward that we have always been leaving behind over the course of the last few 
decades of this work. And so it can seem overwhelming and the charge questions that you heard today, 
there's a lot of them, and there's a number of different nuances to it. My ask is that you think about the 
possibility that maybe it's not as complicated as it seems like it could be. Congress laid out a pretty clear 
vision for how to make this work and how to do it on a faster timeframe than it would be if we did it in 
the same way that EPA has approached grants in the past. And that's to capitalize a single national 
entity, who has been obligated to spend that money and spend those resources that they're given to 
then spread that money around and to invest that money into other entities that can either happen, you 
know, from EPA, giving grants to all those entities, which will take a long time, or it can happen more 
rapidly if it's given to a centralized, nongovernmental institution that can be governed by the terms and 
conditions of the grant that can control what they do with it. And they can do that a lot more rapidly. If 
they are in fact, given that money at the outset. It's also important because I ask you to be open to the 
possibility that it's the better and more effective way to reach the communities that this money is 
intended to reach. You know, we've heard about the concern that a lot of low- and middle-income 
environmental justice communities maybe do not have the capacity to file grant applications right away. 
But there is going to be a number of communities that are not going to have that capacity in 18 months, 
when this money has to have been spent. There's a shelf-life for this money, and there's going to be a 
lot of communities that are still not going to be ready to file that application. And the beauty is that 
Congress actually recognized that when they wrote this law, and gave the power and the responsibility 
of this entity that's intended to be the National Green Bank, to then work with those entities that are 
not yet ready to invest in them before they would ever be able to submit a successful application to a 
federal grant program, to invest in them, to work with them, to establish them, and to give them money 
long before they could ever get it another way. And so there's a lot of power to this. And so it seems like 
giving it to one entity is going to be exclusionary, but I asked you to think about the possibility that's 
actually the best way to expand the pie, expand the number of people who are going to get access to 
this money, and to do it more rapidly than we otherwise could. 
 
Adam Kent, Natural Resources Defense Council 
Good afternoon and thanks for the opportunity to provide comments. My name is Adam Kent, and I'm 
the Senior Advisor in NRDC's Green Finance Center, where we focus on the critical role public and 
private finance can play in the shift to a greener and more prosperous and equitable economy. We've 
submitted more detailed comments in writing, so during this time, I'm just going to limit our comments 
to the first two buckets of EFAB's charge. First, in regards to program objectives, we strongly encourage 
EPA to prioritize low-income and disadvantaged communities and households throughout this program. 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

14 

Focusing on these sectors, EPA can help accelerate investments and communities that the private 
market does not broadly serve. And it has the potential not only to deliver more equitable 
environmental and economic outcomes, but it can also fulfill key additionality, market transformation, 
and market creation principles. Beyond the dollars focused on the place-based low-income and 
disadvantaged communities, EPA should structure and award the unrestricted $12 billion portion with a 
priority towards low-income access. We recommend considering this $12 billion dollar pot as people-
based funds following similar Justice40 and additionality principles. Finally, EPA should prioritize 
community engagement and outreach in both the development of the application and in the awarding 
of the funds. In our written comments, we've provided some potential routes for EPA to consider. 
Ultimately, any awardee should demonstrate a proven track record and commitment to working 
alongside low-income and disadvantaged communities, as well as environmental and energy justice 
organizations. In regard to the second charge around program structure, when thinking about funds 
structuring, eligible recipients, and projects, we encourage EPA to consider four key deployment 
objectives: speed, equity, flexibility, and collaboration. To meet those objectives, the funds should 
primarily route clean energy investments through existing mission-driven institutions and platforms. 
These entities should have a demonstrated track record of successfully deploying capital in low-income 
and disadvantaged communities, either directly or through their networks. These institutions and 
platforms such as CDFIs,  housing finance authorities (HFAs), public housing authorities (PHAs), 
established green banks, as well as associations of community-based lenders can all deploy capital 
quickly to projects in areas that have thus far been overlooked in our country's clean energy transition. 
With access to fund capital and technical assistance, lenders can adjust and complement existing loan 
products and significantly leverage outside private capital. EPA should define clear impact standards and 
metrics for awardees, and awardees should prioritize meaningful improvements to the lived experience 
of marginalized and disadvantaged communities through their investments. Also, EPA should afford 
flexibility to established institutions regarding how financing products are designed, how customers are 
solicited, and how funds are ultimately deployed in projects and technology. Finally, EPA should 
encourage established institutions to partner and collaborate on applications. The Greenhouse Gas 
Reduction Fund will be most successful in accelerating on equitable, clean energy transformation if 
institutions with diverse sets of expertise, geographic focus, and sector experience can work together to 
efficiently and equitably deploy capital. Thanks so much for your time and consideration. 
 
Gregory M. Baird, Aging Water Infrastructure 
Okay, thank you so much. And I hope everybody can really recognize your time, resources, and expertise 
on the EFAB panel. You're looking for solutions for very, very complex issues. There's not always a right 
answer. I serve on a number of committees, American Water Works Association, Water Environment 
Federation, American Public Works Association, American Society of Civil Engineers, and the 
Government Finance Officers Association. And I've seen a lot of obstacles of good utility management 
and cost efficiencies, especially when they focus on, say, water and sewer utilities. Now, EFAB, as an 
advisory committee, has the ability to be able to address some of the statutory obstacles that are very 
limiting for a lot of the EJ and Justice40 programs. Utilities face many financial obstacles, many of which 
are the operational expenditure (OpEx) operations and maintenance side of the budget. The EPA is 
funding most of the time is only focused on capital expenditure (CapEx) the brick-and-mortar capital 
projects. So here we're dealing with the 50-year-old Clean Water Act, but we're over 20-year-old 
Treasury legacy wording of construction of publicly owned treatment plants and other things that are 
really hampering some of the drinking water and the clean water SRF funding. So, first of all, I would like 
to say, can the EPA and State Revolving Funds broadly be applied to, say, statistical analysis system (SAS) 
type of products, many of which are directly tied to immediate capital projects, but digital technologies 
must be funded and applied to address aging infrastructure, workforce issues, sustainability, and 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

15 

affordability issues. So some of that old legacy language in the statutes is really hindering our ability to 
be able to leverage artificial intelligence, machine learning, digital twins, and many capital platforms 
that are packaged as annual subscriptions, that are really requiring OpEx, that operating budget 
planning and approvals. And I'm seeing a higher cost for utilities, by 20% to 30%, of having something 
that could be easily done as a SAS program that now needs to get put in as a capital project. And the 
very small utilities, they don't even have that capacity. So, it influences capacity building, as well as 
increasing cost by always trying to turn everything into a brick-and-mortar capital project. So that's why 
I do not see that we're really able to push out and address effectively some of this funding down to the 
very small field crews where we have some of these different technologies that they could apply. When 
I was a chief financial officer (CFO) for Colorado's third largest water utility—water sewer, storm—I 
found that it was actually easier to do a capital project versus an operational budget because there was 
something else that needed to get into that line to be able to justify that money. Some of the other 
comments that I had is building capacity by adding FTE is focused in these different areas, as well as 
even a regional water sewer shed co-ops to be able to have another mechanism for states to be able to 
get groups together to be able to share some of their knowledge and information. So, I do have a 
number of different comments, but that's just really at a high level is I would plead with the EFAB to be 
able to make a recommendation to change some of that statutory language to allow O&M money and 
technology funding to be able to get and help some of these low-income communities and smaller 
utilities that we are focused on. Thank you. 
 
 
Adjourn 
Ed Chu adjourned the meeting.  
 

  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

16 

Day 2  
Welcome and Member Roll Call 
Ed Chu opened the meeting and welcomed members back.  
 
Kerry O’Neill conducted the roll call and reviewed the agenda. 

 
Roll Call
Albert Cho, present 
Angela Montoya Bricmont, present  
Ashley Allen Jones, present 
Barry Hersh, not present 
Colleen Kokas, not present 
Courtney L. Black, present 
Craig A. Hrinkevich, present  
Craig Holland, present 
Cynthia Koehler, present 
David L. Wegner, present 
David Zimmer, present 
Dennis A. Randolph, present 
Edward Henifin, not present 
Eric Hangen, present 
Eric Rothstein, present 
George W. Kelly, present 
Gwen Yamamoto Lau, present 
Gwendolyn Keyes Fleming, present 

Janet Clements, present 
Jeffrey R. Diehl, present 
Joanne V. Landau, present 
Lawrence Lujan, present 
Lori Collins, present 
Margot Kane, present 
Marilyn Waite, present 
MaryAnna H. Peavey, present 
Matthew T. Brown, present 
Phyllis R. Garcia, present 
Sanjiv Sinha, present 
Sonja B. Favors, present 
Stacy Brown, present 
Steven J. Bonafonte, present 
Theodore Chapman, present 
Thomas Karol, present 
William Stannard, present 
Zachary Davidson, not present 

 
 
Kerry O'Neill said goals for the day were to vote on charges and form three workgroups. Ed Chu added 
that there will be permission to proceed with work. As a matter of process, charge questions have 
evolved as working groups have delved into them, and the Board has accepted this as a practice. 
 
Kerry O'Neill said the workgroups will meet weekly and may have questions for the full Board or 
recommended modifications to the charge to propose at the November 17 meeting. The second 
meeting will be December 1, with the final product for this phase ready for the full Board's review on 
Dec. 15. 
 
 
GHGRF Charge Vote 
 
Note: The approved charge is in appendix 12. 
 
Eric Hangen amended a statement he made yesterday about item B3, program structure; he said he 
likes the wording. Regarding B2, he asked whether literature reviews and case studies could inform all 
the elements. Kerry O'Neill said yes, research is requested throughout.  
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

17 

Ed Chu said support will be available as needed so that workgroups can get the work done. He 
mentioned P2's workgroup model for bringing in outside experts, and he noted that Alejandra Nunez 
and Tim Profeta will be closely engaged. 
 
Stacy Brown asked for clarification on whether projects that would assist small businesses in upgrades 
needed to abate hazardous air pollution could be considered an eligible project under the charge. 
Alejandra Nunez said the definition of qualified projects is very broad, and she pointed to pollutants 
identified in Section 108 of the Clean Air Act. She noted that the language refers to GHG and other 
pollution; disadvantaged communities are overburdened by both. 
 
Ed Chu asked for clarification about whether the relationship between GHG and other pollutants is an 
"and" or an "or." Alejandra Nunez said it's about GHG and other pollutants.  
 
George Kelly asked whether the questions should be analyzed according to the separate funding 
streams. Tim Profeta thought that might be the best approach, although he recommended avoiding a 
"stovepipe" approach that might prevent seeing potential relationships among them. Kerry O'Neill 
suggested adding a clarification sentence at the end of the second paragraph, so the Board is clear 
about what it is voting on, and Ed Chu invited George Kelly to draft a sentence to add. 
 
Sanjiv Sinha observed that the 18-month timeframe results in an average distribution rate of $15 million 
per day. He said most politicians speak about it as an upcoming national green bank. He asked if the 
Board should focus on the green bank potential and asked how EPA feels about that focus. 
 
In the chat, Marilyn Waite wrote: "Yes, and that's nothing if we can get it going through our community 
focused depository institutions, including credit unions and new fintechs." 
 
Alejandra Nunez said EPA doesn't have a specific way of implementing in mind; that's what they're 
seeking guidance on. Tim Profeta said EPA is asking for the best counsel with pros and cons on how EPA 
should proceed. 
 
Marilyn Waite said that indirect recipients can include depository institution. She said the U.S. credit 
union capacity is about $2 trillion, community banks $4 trillion, and minority depository institutions 
$300 billion, so the amount is peanuts when compared to capacity of community-focused lenders.   
 
Craig Holland suggested amending the approach section to include potential beneficiaries in 
roundtables and to compensate people for their time. Ed Chu said he would take that comment back to 
EPA. 
 
Jeff Diehl asked whether "commitment of funds" meant a commitment from EPA to recipients, or 
commitment by recipients to projects. Alejandra Nunez said it means funds are available for EPA to 
award by that date. Jeff Diehl said, then, it refers to a commitment from EPA to recipients. He said part 
of the consideration would then be how would those funds be drawn down by recipients.  
 
Angela Bricmont asked EPA what their ideal deliverable would be. Alejandra Nunez said they would like 
options with pros and cons, an analysis of options. She said, given that there are only two months, 
they'd like to make the deliverable doable. EPA is not looking for a large written report. Kerry O'Neill 
clarified that EPA is not looking for the program design, but for input so EPA can design the program. 
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

18 

Craig Hrinkevich asked for guidance about administrative costs: Are monies supposed to come back to 
direct and indirect recipients? Is it a revolving fund, or a "one and done"? 
 
Tim Profeta said the language is instructions for the grantee on how they should use the funds, and it 
refers to continued operability. Alejandra Nunez said it also depends on how financial assistance is 
defined - grants vs. loans, for example. 
 
Craig Hrinkevich asked whether, in the draft charge, 1B (program efficiency) and 2A (eligible recipients) 
should be switched for the purposes of the workgroup tasks. Alejandra Nunez said this is an area where 
there are common elements. Kerry O'Neill said there is overlap on all three, so workgroup leaders 
would coordinate weekly to address overlapping issues. 
 
Referring to the "Approach" section, Ashley Allen Jones said that the first step would be a 
comprehensive literature review. About convening groups, she said it had been suggested EFAB talk to 
organizations that give grants or loans. The next level would be talking to potential recipients. She asked 
if they have time and capacity for that work. There is a range of incentives to get people at the table, 
and perhaps they could talk to people who have done those types of convenings already. She also asked 
for clarity on whether the scope is the whole country or specific tracts. She said clarifications on the 
approach will help ensure the workgroups are not spread too wide in a limited time. Ed Chu said 
workgroups will determine their scope as a part of the workgroup process.  
 
Ashley Allen Jones clarified that she was the one who had added specific focus to the approach. Her 
intent was not to exclude other groups, but to strategically offer EPA what they don't necessarily already 
have. She didn't want it to appear that they would only talk to private equity people. Eric Hangen said 
starting with a literature review is a great idea. A lot of research has been done with beneficiary groups 
and there is a treasure trove of conversations to access. He said he would like to broaden the language 
in the approach. 
 
Kerry O'Neill asked if the current language is okay or whether it should be amended. Eric Hangen 
suggested amending it. Ed Chu suggested those who wanted edits could draft them during the break. 
 
Regarding the literature review, Marilyn Waite cautioned against anchoring bias, since there will be a 
lot more literature on CDFIs than on minority depository institutions (MDIs).  
 
After the break, Alejandra Nunez walked the group through the edits. A sentence was added to the 
preamble acknowledging the possibility that feedback on the charge questions may need to be 
differentiated according to funding stream. At end of document, the group proposed draft language for 
the approach. Several edits were suggested until the group agreed on language. 
 
Lori Collins moved to approve the charge; Jeff Diehl suggested a process that allowed workgroups to 
address questions as they see fit. Craig Holland seconded Jeff's motion. 
 
Following a voice vote, Kerry O'Neill said motion passed. 
 
Kerry O'Neill called for volunteers to engage in each of three groups; she was looking for a maximum of 
five members for each group who can commit to multiple engagements each week. After members 
stated their preferences, Kerry O'Neill said she will work with Ed Chu to get back to group with their 
assignments and discuss leadership so groups can get going at once. 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

19 

 
 
Alejandra Nunez said EPA will be very intentional about engaging with communities. 
 
 
Proposed Water Charges for Board Consideration 
Bruno Pigott, EPA Office of Water Deputy Assistant Administrator 
With Michael Deane, EPA Clean Water SRF Chief, Raffael Stein, EPA Water Infrastructure Division 
Director, Ellen Tarquinio, EPA Water Infrastructure and Resilience Finance Center Acting Chief, and 
Joshua Amaris, EPA Clean Water SRF 
 
Note: The proposed charges are in appendix 13. 
 
Bruno Pigottt said the BIL is an unprecedented opportunity to support communities around the country 
with drinking water, wastewater, and stormwater infrastructure, and they are working hard to make 
funding available in an equitable way. He said that currently they are conducting outreach and 
engagement with SRF partners and are seeing initial BIL capitalization grant awards. Michael Deane and 
Raffael Stein are providing oversight guidance for reviewing intended use plans (IUPs) to ensure that 
disadvantaged communities are not left out. They are proving trainings to states and regions and setting 
up workgroups to establish best practices. He said EPA is trying to think of TA in a new way and is 
piloting an intensive approach to providing direct TA through a Community Solutions team. Finally, he 
said, EFC grants will be supercharged by the new funding. 
 
Bruno Pigott reviewed the nine charges proposed by the Office of Water. Proposed charges 1–3 focus on 
the SRF program. The first is the use of SRF additional subsidies to target assistance to neighborhoods or 
households in need. This charge involves mechanisms for ensuring services for neighborhoods or 
households experiencing financial hardship from increased rates needed to fund infrastructure projects.  
 
The second proposed charge is effective use of water infrastructure investment. Bruno Pigott said EPA is 
asking EFAB to research and make recommendations about the current suite of metrics that exist and an 
analysis on conducting fiduciary oversight and whether there are other ways to analyze or gauge 
whether a program is meeting that requirement. The third proposed charge is improving the efficiency 
of implementing EPA funding. A letter sent to Administrator Reagan asked EPA to work with states to 
make the process of getting funding from EPA to a community more efficient. EPA is asking EFAB to 
research challenges communities experience in receiving EPA funding as well as ways to address those 
challenges. EFAB could also propose ways to recognize states that make improvements in reaching 
historically underserved communities, such as an awards program, or some other way to spur the 
competition. 
 
Proposed charges 4 and 5 concern TA as a driver in protecting water quality, providing clean water, and 
protecting public health. Bruno Pigott said these charges will help communities get the TA they need to 
be able to take advantage of monies available through BIL funding. He said they are looking to build 
long-term capacity for EPA to provide TA. Proposed charge 5 concerns households with decentralized 
systems to be able to maintain their system after installation. EPA hopes EFAB can advise on 
homeowner maintenance ideas.  
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

20 

Proposed charges 6–8 are on affordability. Bruno Pigott said proposed charge 6 is on effective customer 
assistance programs for communities that are paying back loans. Proposed charge 7 asks for EFAB 
strategies to help EPA develop a needs assessment survey on customer assistance programs that work. 
Proposed charge 8 deals with rate structuring to mitigate the impact of rate hikes due to infrastructure 
projects.  
 
The final proposed charge concerns municipal bond indebtedness. Bruno Pigott said that many 
communities are burdened with paying for environmental debt. Small communities in particular may 
have to incur debt to pay for environmental mandates. EPA seeks EFAB guidance on finance 
mechanisms that could ease the burden for smaller communities. 
 
Kerry O’Neill invited questions from the Board. 
 
Albert Cho asked, of the 9, which are of greatest interest to EPA? In the view of EPA leadership, which 
would have the greatest impact if solved? Bruno Pigott replied he is mostly interested in the questions 
relating to TA. Michael Deane highlighted those addressing needs for decentralized communities. 
Raffael Stein said he would like to do something transformational in water space with BIL funding. Ellen 
Tarquinio named charges relating to affordability programs, customer assistance, and also proposed 
charge 7. Joshua Amaris said he was most interested in proposed charges 1 and 2.  
 
Cynthia Koehler said that the non-governmental organization (NGO) community is thinking of these 
same questions. She said some of these charges could be explored together, such as the TA piece and 
affordability. She suggested that EFAB together with EPA can think about an opportunity to tackle a few 
of these together. Ed Chu said that, per the standard process, an exploratory workgroup will work with 
EPA to discuss priorities, as well as combining issues. The exploratory group will deliberate on charge 
questions and propose final charge questions to the Board.  
 
David Zimmer asked whether TA components included issues such as governance, management, and 
finance. Bruno Pigott said yes, communities need holistic TA. 
 
Bill Stannard said a key element of the Wastewater Construction Grant Program was ensuring that user 
charge systems adequately funded maintenance well into the future. Also, regarding affordability, he 
mentioned the Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP) and wondered if that would 
be a part of the analysis. Ellen Tarquinio said EPA has worked with the Department of Health and 
Human Services (HHS) and talked with them about challenges. It wasn't explicitly listed but if It should 
be part of another charge, the exploratory committee could add it. HHS could be brought into the 
discussion. In addition to LIHWAP, there are many other programs to consider.  
 
Raffael Stein said there is interest in Congress in creating a permanent program for EPA, and EPA will 
come to the Board if that ever comes about, but in the meantime, EPA has immediate concerns. 
 
Regarding TA, David Zimmer said a lot of people go right to engineering, but we see a need for TA well 
before that point. The proposed charge needs to be able to include community education, outreach, and 
planning. He said we need to think broad. Regarding proposed charge 1, he said one way his state puts 
aside money for TA to disadvantaged communities is through collecting fees beyond what they can 
collect from administering the SRF. These can add up to significant monies that can be used to support 
communities.  
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

21 

Eric Rothstein offered support for any charge that has to do with affordability. He suggested that there 
is an opportunity to rethink what we mean by water service. He said we think of it as drops of water 
through water meters; we don't define it for purposes of cost service analysis or in terms of protecting 
public health. A discussion of any of the affordability issues would benefit from rethinking our freedom 
to act in support of low-income customers.  
 
On proposed charge 7, Ted Chapman said there used to be a regular needs assessment about every four 
years for drinking water; will this be apart from the regular needs assessment? Ellen Tarquinio said it 
would be separate; she added that it is currently authorized but not appropriated, so we wouldn't want 
to move forward before it is funded. 
 
Dave Wegner noted that the first paragraph of the charge proposal mentioned the Water Infrastructure 
Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) and asked if it could be brought into the proposed charges. Joshua 
Amaris said yes, EPA is open to hearing about that. Dave Wegner then raised the issue of synergies, 
such as with Indian Health Services, and asked if EFAB should assume they should try to leverage BIL 
funds with other programs to achieve TA goals, in particular. Ellen Tarquinio said yes, and the 
exploratory workgroup could look into leveraging other agencies and funding pots. Dave Wegner said 
that disenfranchised communities are not always urban, and he noted the requirements associated with 
Indian water settlements and how water is used on reservations and pueblos as defined by Congress. He 
said we should not ignore this disenfranchised part of water distribution culture.  
 
Given the urgency of the GHGRF charge, Kerry O'Neill suggested the formation of an exploratory 
workgroup could discuss key issues and report outs at the meeting planned for early 2023. She asked if 
the Board felt comfortable with this. 
 
Albert Cho asked when EPA expected deliverables on the charge. Ellen Tarquinio said they are open to 
different kinds of products and approaches, and there are no hard deliverables or timelines. They are 
open to deliverables such as webinars and to integrative deliverables. 
 
Bill Stannard moved to establish an exploratory workgroup; Angela Bricmont seconded.  
 
The Board voted in favor. 
 
Kerry O'Neill called for volunteers, and many members indicated interest. Ed Chu recommended that he 
and Kerry O'Neill discuss to make sure the workgroup doesn't exceed quorum and recommended a 
smaller exploratory group.  
 
Ellen Tarquinio thanked EFAB for voting to form an exploratory workgroup and said it will be very 
valuable to EPA. 
 
 
EFAB Chair's Corner 
Kerry O’Neill, EFAB Chair 
 
Kerry O'Neill reviewed with the Board the interest areas mentioned at the spring meeting. These were: 
 

• Community capacity building models given unprecedented funding levels;  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

22 

• Environmental risk and cost of capital/Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG); 
• Farm, Ranch, and Rural Communities Federal Advisory Committee (FRRCC); 
• Water affordability; 
• Expanding SRF capacity; and, 
• Lead service line replacement. 

 
Kerry O'Neill said that community capacity building is being explored as a part of the water charge 
proposal and the GHGRF. 
 
Dennis Randolph said the two new charges just voted on will cover a couple years. Ed Chu said that 
these were indeed ideas mentioned before the two new charges. 
 
Ashley Allen Jones said the issue of TA was too important to drop off the list entirely. Ed Chu said it's 
important when the Board identifies gaps rather than have EPA drive all the Board's efforts. Craig 
Holland said it is difficult to move a charge forward without an EPA client and the approach has not had 
a lot of success in the past. Kerry O'Neill said they will keep it on the list and stay alert for a potential 
EPA client. 
 
Dave Wegner asked Craig Holland if his experience was that they should have found an EPA client 
before moving forward. Craig Holland said yes, because the agency was not ready to receive the 
recommendations and didn't have people or processes in place to use the information.  
 
Ed Chu reminded members of the SOP the received as a part of their onboarding materials that explains 
how EFAB would work on new charges.  
 
Kerry O'Neill moved the discussion to environmental risk and cost of capital, which has not found an 
internal client. Ted Chapman said the issue is hard to define, and perhaps it can be taken up later.  
 
Regarding the Farm, Ranch, and Rural Communities issue, Ed Chu said that Janet McCabe had 
encouraged EFAB to collaborate with other FACAs. Andrew Wynne said the opportunity was broached 
during the March meeting. The FRRCC advisory board was going through a membership drive and may 
still be getting members onboard. He suggested keeping the issue on the back burner for now. 
Ed Chu said there is a ready-made client. Kerry O'Neill observed a lot of overlap on agriculture projects 
with the GHGRF charge.  
 
Regarding water affordability, Kerry O'Neill said the issue is covered by new exploratory workgroup.  
 
On expanding SRF capacity, MaryAnna Peavey said it could be incorporated into other charges the 
Board is looking at, such as charges on utilization rates. Kerry O'Neill said there was interest in 
nontraditional uses of the SRF, so maybe keep it on the list for now. David Zimmer cautioned about 
using SRF in untraditional ways. He said each state administers the program differently and there are a 
lot of hoops to jump through before executing dollars received. 
 
Albert Cho referred to an earlier discussion on GHG emissions and asked if there is a role for existing 
revolving loan instruments to support decarbonization of water infrastructure funded by infrastructure 
money. Next, is there a role for sponsorship in affordability agenda? Kerry O'Neill said Albert Cho's 
second concern would be addressed by the exploratory workgroup. She asked Albert Cho to email her 
some notes. 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

23 

 
Regarding the last topic of lead service line replacement. Cynthia Koehler recommended keeping it on 
the list and said a lot has changed since it was first suggested, such as dedicated funds coming out of the 
acts. She recommended having a briefing but not moving forward with it now. 
 
 
DFO Final Thoughts 
Ed Chu said they are looking into dates for an in-person meeting at the end of January at EPA. They are 
trying to do this because the GHGRF has a 180-day window for EPA to come up with a plan. In case the 
December 15 deadline slips, they want to reserve time in January so the Board can approve 
recommendations or approve them in parts.  
 
He repeated the dates of the upcoming virtual meetings:  
 
November 17  1–3 pm Eastern 
December 1 1–3 pm Eastern 
December 15 1–5 Eastern 
 
Kerry O'Neill said the January meeting would be a time for the water exploratory workgroup to check in. 
 
Ted Chapman asked if the White House Environmental Justice Advisory Committee’s (WHEJAC) Climate 
Resilience Workgroup could report out at the January meeting. Ed Chu said yes, as well as a lead pipe 
briefing and an update on SRF. 
 
 
Public Comment 
Note: Written public comments are in appendix 11. 
 
There were two registered commenters for the day, but only one was present.  
 
Andrew Kessler, president, New York Green Bank 
Good afternoon. I'm Andrew Kessler, president of New York Green Bank. And thank you so much for the 
opportunity to comment today. The New York Green Bank is a billion-dollar New York state sponsored 
Investment Fund. We operate as a division of the New York State Energy Research and Development 
Authority, NYSERDA, and we're the largest Green Bank in the United States. Our mission is to work with 
the private sector to transform financing markets in ways that accelerate clean energy investments on 
an equitable basis and in support of New York state's climate goals. Since we opened for business in 
2013, we have advanced this mission by making $1.8 billion of investments in more than 100 
transactions and asset classes that are critical to the clean energy transition. Our team works every day 
to make investments that are market-based, replicable, and scalable, and then we find ways to create 
secondary markets for those investments. And since New York passed historic climate law in 2019, we 
are committed to ensuring that at least 35%, with a goal of 40% of our investments benefit 
disadvantaged communities across New York State. Given New York Green Bank's investment record in 
New York, we welcome the EPA's Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund as a historic opportunity to further 
accelerate clean energy investments across the United States. We also welcome the Greenhouse Gas 
Fund's emphasis on low-income and disadvantaged communities, which is directly in line with our 
commitment to support these communities across New York state. And finally, we welcome and 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

24 

strongly support the Environmental Financial Advisory Board's proposed charge to the exploratory 
workgroup for the Greenhouse Gas Fund. We encourage EPA, EFAB, and the workgroup to run a 
transparent, consultative process that solicits feedback on the design and the implementation of the 
fund from the broader stakeholder community. As a general principle, we encourage competitive 
allocation methodologies that are designed to identify recipients that can mobilize capital at scale, 
especially in low-income and disadvantaged communities. Such recipients should have a demonstrated 
ability to leverage private-sector capital and access secondary markets. Finally, they should have strong 
internal controls and compliance programs to ensure responsible stewardship of public funds. For the 
zero-admission technologies fund, it will be critical to have a reallocation mechanism that ensures that 
funds are not left unused, but instead can be reallocated to other recipients who are able to maximize 
the use of these funds. We would also suggest that the fund's compliance requirements can avoid 
undue administrative burdens on recipients, while still of course ensuring robust oversight and 
protection of public dollars. In particular, we suggest that the states that already have established 
criteria for disadvantaged communities be able to use such criteria to satisfy EPA requirements. We look 
forward to receiving further guidance in the weeks ahead from the EPA, EFAB, and the workgroup. We 
stand ready to engage collaboratively with all market actors to advance this effort. In the meantime, we 
thank EPA leadership and staff as well as EFAB and the workgroup for their important work ahead on 
making the Greenhouse Gas Fund a success. Thank you very much for the opportunity to make these 
remarks. 
 
 
Adjourn 
Ed Chu adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

25 

Appendix 1. Federal Register Announcement 
 
 

 
 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

26 

Appendix 2. Agenda 
 

  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

27 

 

  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

28 

Appendix 3. EFAB Members, 2022 Roster 
 

Ed Chu, Designated Federal Officer 
Tara Johnson, Alternate Designated Federal Officer 

 
NAME 

 
AFFILIATION 

 
LOCATION PERSPECTIVE 

REPRESENTED 
CURRENT 
TERM 

ORIGINAL 
APPOINTMEN

T DATE 
Kerry O’Neill, 
EFAB Chair 

Chief Executive Officer, 
Inclusive Prosperity 
Capital, Inc. 

Stamford, 
Connecticut 
(EPA Region 1) 

Environmental/ 
Non-
governmental 
Organization 

July 20, 2021–
June 15, 2023 

July 28, 2020 

Ashley Allen Jones Founder and Chief 
Executive Officer, i2 
Capital 

Washington, 
District of Columbia 
(EPA Region 3) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Courtney L. Black Deputy Finance 
Director, City of Kent 

Kent, Washington 
(EPA Region 10) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Steven J. Bonafonte Assistant District 
Counsel, The 
Metropolitan District 
of Hartford 

Hartford, 
Connecticut 
(EPA Region 1) 

Legal June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Angela Montoya 
Bricmont 

Chief Finance Officer, 
Denver Water 

Denver, Colorado 
(EPA Region 8) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Matthew T. Brown Chief Financial Officer 
and EVP, Finance and 
Procurement, District 
of Columbia Water and 
Sewer Authority 

Washington, 
District of Columbia 
(EPA Region 3) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Stacy Brown President and Chief 
Executive Officer, 
Freberg 
Environmental, Inc. 

Denver, Colorado 
(EPA Region 8) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Theodore Chapman Investment Banking 
Analyst, Hilltop 
Securities, Inc. 

Dallas, Texas 
(EPA Region 6) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

July 28, 2020 –
June 15, 2023 

September 25, 
2017 

Albert Cho Senior Vice President, 
Chief Strategy and 
Digital Officer, Xylem, 
Inc. 

Washington, 
District of Columbia 
(EPA Region 3) 

Business – 
Industry 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Janet Clements President and 
Founder, One Water 
Econ 

Loveland, Colorado 
(EPA Region 8) 

Business – 
Industry 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Lori Collins Owner and Principal, 
Collins Climate 
Consulting 

Charlotte, North 
Carolina 
(EPA Region 4) 

Business – 
Industry 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Zachary Davidson Director of 
Underwriting, 
Ecosystem Investment 
Partners 

Baltimore, 
Maryland  
(EPA Region 3) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

29 

 
NAME 

 
AFFILIATION 

 
LOCATION PERSPECTIVE 

REPRESENTED 
CURRENT 
TERM 

ORIGINAL 
APPOINTMEN

T DATE 
Jeffrey R. Diehl Chief Executive Officer, 

Rhode Island 
Infrastructure Bank 

Providence, Rhode 
Island 
(EPA Region 1) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Sonja B. Favors Industrial Hazardous 
Waste Branch Chief, 
Alabama Department 
on Environmental 
Management 

Montgomery, 
Alabama  
(EPA Region 4) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Phyllis R. Garcia Treasurer, San Antonio 
Water 
System 

San Antonio, Texas 
(EPA Region 6) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Eric Hangen Senior Research 
Fellow, Center for 
Impact Finance, Carsey 
School of Public Policy, 
University of New 
Hampshire 

Danby, Vermont 
(EPA Region 1) 

Academic June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Edward Henifin General Manager 
(retired), Hampton 
Roads Sanitation 
District 

Virginia Beach, 
Virginia  
(EPA Region 3) 

State/Local 
Government 

July 28, 2020 –
June 15, 2023 

June 15, 2018 

Barry Hersh Clinical Professor and 
MSRED Chair, School 
of Professional Studies, 
New York University 

New York, New 
York (EPA Region 2) 

Academic June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Craig Holland Senior Director of 
Urban Investments, 
The Nature 
Conservancy 

Arlington, Virginia 
(EPA Region 3) 

Environmental/ 
Non-
governmental 
Organization 

July 28, 2020 –
June 15, 2023 

September 25, 
2017 

Craig A. Hrinkevich Public Finance Team – 
New Jersey Managing 
Director, Robert W. 
Baird & Company, Inc. 

Red Bank, New 
Jersey  
(EPA Region 2) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Margot Kane Chief Investment 
Officer, Spring Point 
Partners LLC 

Philadelphia, 
Pennsylvania 
(EPA Region 3) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

June 21, 2022 – 
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Thomas Karol General Counsel 
Federal, National 
Association of Mutual 
Insurance Companies 

Washington, 
District of Columbia 
(EPA Region 3) 

Legal June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

George W. Kelly Global Client Strategy 
Officer, 
Earth Recovery 
Partners 

Denver, Colorado 
(EPA Region 8) 

Business – 
Financial 
Services 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Gwendolyn Keyes 
Fleming 

Partner, DLA Piper LLP Washington, 
District of Columbia 
(EPA Region 3) 

Legal June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

30 

 
NAME 

 
AFFILIATION 

 
LOCATION PERSPECTIVE 

REPRESENTED 
CURRENT 
TERM 

ORIGINAL 
APPOINTMEN

T DATE 
Cynthia Koehler Executive Director, 

WaterNow Alliance 
San Francisco, 
California 
(EPA Region 9) 

Environmental/ 
Non-
governmental 
Organization 

June 21, 2022 – 
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Colleen Kokas Executive Vice 
President, 
Environmental Liability 
Transfer, 
Inc. 

Lahaska, 
Pennsylvania 
(EPA Region 3) 

Business – 
Industry 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Joanne V. Landau President and Chief 
Investment Officer, 
Kurtsam Realty Corp. 

Croton-on-Hudson, 
New York  
(EPA Region 2) 

Business – 
Industry 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

Lawrence Lujan Executive Director, 
Taos Public 
Utility Service 

Taos, New Mexico 
(EPA Region 6) 

Tribal 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

MaryAnna H. Peavey Grants and Loans 
Bureau Supervisory, 
Idaho Department 
of Environmental 
Quality 

Boise, Idaho  
(EPA Region 10) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Dennis A. Randolph City Traffic Engineer, 
City of Kalamazoo 
Public Services 
Department 

Kalamazoo, 
Michigan 
(EPA Region 5) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2024 

July 28, 2020 

Eric Rothstein Principal, Galardi 
Rothstein Group 

Montreat, North 
Carolina 
(EPA Region 4) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

July 28, 2020 –
June 15, 2023 

September 25, 
2017 

Sanjiv Sinha Chief Sustainability 
Officer, Environmental 
Consulting & 
Technology, Inc. 

Ann Arbor, 
Michigan  
(EPA Region 5) 

Business – 
Industry 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

William Stannard Chairman of the Board,  
 
RAFTELIS 

Kansas City, 
Missouri 
(EPA Region 7) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

July 28, 2020 –
June 15, 2023 

June 15, 2018 

Marilyn Waite Managing Director, 
Climate Finance Fund 

Washington, 
District of Columbia 
(EPA Region 3) 

Business – 
Financial Services 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

David L. Wegner Senior Consultant on 
Water, Climate 
Change, and Asset Risk 
Assessment, Water 
Science and 
Technology Board, 
National Academy of 
Sciences 

Tucson, Arizona 
(EPA Region 9) 

Business – 
Industry 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

31 

 
NAME 

 
AFFILIATION 

 
LOCATION PERSPECTIVE 

REPRESENTED 
CURRENT 
TERM 

ORIGINAL 
APPOINTMEN

T DATE 
Gwen Yamamoto Lau Executive Director, 

Hawaii Green 
Infrastructure Authority 

Honolulu, Hawaii 
(EPA Region 9) 

State/Local 
Government 

June 21, 2022 –
June 15, 2025 

June 21, 2022 

David Zimmer Executive Director, New 
Jersey Infrastructure 
Bank 

Lawrenceville, New 
Jersey  
(EPA Region 2) 

State/Local 
Government 

July 28, 2020 –
June 15, 2023 

June 15, 2018 

 
 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

32 

Appendix 4. Office of Environmental Justice and External Civil Rights Briefing 
 

 

 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

33 

 

 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

34 

 

 

 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

35 

 

Appendix 5. Inflation Reduction Act Slides 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

36 

 

 
 
 

 
 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

37 

 

 
 

 
 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

38 

 
 
 

 
 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

39 

Appendix 6. GHGRF slides 
 

 
 

 
 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

40 

Appendix 7. GHGRF Proposed Charge 
 

  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

41 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

42 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

43 

Appendix 8. GHGRF Statute Language 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

44 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

45 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

46 

Appendix 9. Opportunity Zone Letter  
 

  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

47 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

48 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

49 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

50 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

51 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

52 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

53 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

54 

Appendix 10. Pollution Prevention Letter and Presentation 
 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

55 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

56 

 
 
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

57 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

58 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

59 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

60 

 
 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

61 

 
 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

62 

 
 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

63 

 
 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

64 

 
 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

65 

 
 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

66 

 
 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

67 

Appendix 11. Public Comments 
 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

68 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

69 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

70 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

71 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

72 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

73 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

74 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

75 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

76 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

77 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

78 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

79 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

80 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

81 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

82 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

83 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

84 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

85 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

86 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

87 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

88 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

89 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

90 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

91 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

92 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

93 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

94 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

95 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

96 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

97 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

98 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

99 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

100 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

101 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

102 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

103 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

104 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

105 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

106 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

107 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

108 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

109 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

110 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

111 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

112 

 
 
 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

113 

Appendix 12. Final Approved GHGRF Charge 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

114 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

115 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

116 

 
  



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

117 

Appendix 13. Office of Water Proposed Charges 

 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

118 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

119 



Environmental Financial Advisory Board Meeting, Oct. 18–19, 2022  | 
 

120 

 
 


	Purpose
	Welcome, Member Roll Call, and Review of Agenda
	Welcome
	Roll Call

	EPA Region 8 Welcome
	DFO News
	EPA Office of Environmental Justice and External Civil Rights
	EPA Senior Management Update
	GREENHOUSE GAS REDUCTION FUND (GHGRF) PROPOSED CHARGE
	Program Objectives
	Program Structure
	Execution, Reporting, and Accountability

	Opportunity Zones Workgroup
	Pollution Prevention Workgroup
	Public Comment
	Adjourn
	Welcome and Member Roll Call
	Roll Call

	GHGRF Charge Vote
	Proposed Water Charges for Board Consideration
	EFAB Chair's Corner
	DFO Final Thoughts
	Public Comment
	Adjourn
	Appendix 1. Federal Register Announcement
	Appendix 2. Agenda
	Appendix 3. EFAB Members, 2022 Roster
	Appendix 4. Office of Environmental Justice and External Civil Rights Briefing
	Appendix 5. Inflation Reduction Act Slides
	Appendix 6. GHGRF slides
	Appendix 7. GHGRF Proposed Charge
	Appendix 8. GHGRF Statute Language
	Appendix 9. Opportunity Zone Letter
	Appendix 10. Pollution Prevention Letter and Presentation
	Appendix 11. Public Comments
	Appendix 12. Final Approved GHGRF Charge
	Appendix 13. Office of Water Proposed Charges

